
 
Distance Education and Technology Committee 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday, May 8, 2018 
3:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. 
L-201 

Type of Meeting: Regular 
Please Review/Bring: Agenda Packet 
 
Committee Members: 
Perry Jehlicka, Co-Chair 
Dr. Bonnie Suderman, Co-Chair 
Greg Bormann, VPAA Co-Chair Designee  
Dr. Tom O’Neil, Administrative Member 
Walter Briggs, Counseling Faculty Representative 
Dr. Scott Lee, AP&P Representative  
Jimmie Bowen, Faculty Member 
Rona Brynin – Faculty Member  
Mary Rose Toll, Faculty Member 
Kathy Osburn, Faculty Member 
Ken Sawicki, ITS Alternative Media Specialist     
John Toth, AVFCT Member 
Sheri Langaman, Classified Union Representative 
Dr. Ed Beyer, Instructional Designer 
Rick Shaw, ITS Management Member 
Greg Krynen, ITS Technical Trainer 
Mike Wilmes, Blackboard Administrator 
Darnell White, IMC Representative 
 
Guests: 
 
 

Items Person Action 
I. Call to Order Perry Jehlicka  
II. Approval of Agenda Perry Jehlicka  
III. Opening Comments 

from Co-chairs 
Perry Jehlicka 
Greg Bormann 

 

IV. Open Comments from 
the Public 

  

V. Approval of Minutes All A. April 25, 2018 DETC Meeting 
VI. Discussion Items Perry Jehlicka 

Perry Jehlicka 
A. Development of Course Review Panel 
B. AP&P Recommendations (attachment) 

VII. Action Items Dr. Ed Beyer A. Course Definitions (attachment) 
VIII. Adjournment   

NEXT MEETING: 5/22/18   
 



 

Approved: May 22, 2018 Distance Education & Technology Committee Meeting 

Distance Education and Technology Committee 
Minutes 

 

Tuesday, May 8, 2018 
3:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. 
L-201 

Type of Meeting: Regular 
Please Review/Bring: Agenda Packet 
 
Committee Members: 
Perry Jehlicka, Co-Chair 
Dr. Bonnie Suderman, Co-Chair 
Greg Bormann, VPAA Co-Chair Designee  
Dr. Tom O’Neil, Administrative Member 
Walter Briggs, Counseling Faculty Representative 
Dr. Scott Lee, AP&P Representative  
Jimmie Bowen, Faculty Member 
Rona Brynin – Faculty Member  
Mary Rose Toll, Faculty Member 
Kathy Osburn, Faculty Memberk 
Ken Sawicki, ITS Alternative Media Specialist     
John Toth, AVFCT Member 
Sheri Langaman, Classified Union Representative 
Dr. Ed Beyer, Instructional Designer 
Rick Shaw, ITS Management Member – Daniel Conner, Proxy 
Greg Krynen, ITS Technical Trainer 
Mike Wilmes, Blackboard Administrator 
Darnell White, IMC Representative – ABSENT 
 

Items Person Action 
I. Call to Order Perry Jehlicka The Distance Education & Technology Committee meeting of 

May 8, 2018 was called to order at 3:03 p.m. by Perry 
Jehlicka, Distance Education & Technology Committee. 

II. Approval of Agenda Perry Jehlicka Motion made and seconded to approve the agenda as 
presented. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

III. Opening Comments 
from Co-chairs 

Perry Jehlicka 
Greg Bormann 

• Perry reminded members and read 1the following 
statement from President Knudson – all agenda items 
and supporting documents must be included agenda 
packets for accessibility by all members: 

 
Good Afternoon All, 
 
Over the past few weeks, a few instances have 
occurred where the distribution of handouts and 
materials has not been timely and as such has 
created issues for some of our colleagues.  I have 
been guilty of this as well.  We have colleagues 
who require advance distribution in order to be 
prepared for the meeting whether it be captioning 
or conversion to materials for the sight-impaired.  I 
know there is no intention to exclude anyone from 
participation, so I am reminding that all of us need 
to be mindful of this time and make every effort to 
ensure that agendas with accompanying handouts 



 

Approved: May 22, 2018 Distance Education & Technology Committee Meeting 

and materials be produced and distributed in 
advance of the meeting time so everyone has the 
opportunity to be prepared. 
 
Thanks for your help. 
 
Ed Knudson 
President 
Antelope Valley College 

 
• Perry had a meeting with Quest & SmarterMeasure – 

a learning readiness indicator for OEI. The resource is 
within Canvas – AVC hasn’t used it yet. Greg Krynen 
noted the product was setup inside the Canvas module 
three years ago and can be customized to fit AVC 
needs. The resource can be used for first time distance 
education learners, or experienced online learners.  

IV. Open Comments from 
the Public 

 • In reply to President Knudson’s statement, Dr. Beyer 
suggested training for those who send agenda packets. 
Perry noted some have implemented the training. 

V. Approval of Minutes All A. April 25, 2018 DETC Meeting 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of 
the April 25, 2018 DETC meeting. 
Motion carried unanimously - one (1) correction. 

VI. Discussion Items Perry Jehlicka 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Perry Jehlicka 

A. Development of Course Review Panel 
The Academic Senate approved the Rubric for the Course 
Review Panel. Members discussed the next steps to build 
the panel for OEI.  
• Define responsibilities 
• Establish panel and first meeting 
• Any course can be submitted voluntarily 
Members will determine job descriptions at May 22, 2018 
meeting. Panel will begin in fall. 

B. AP&P Recommendations (attachment) 
Perry met with Dr. Darcy Wiewall, Academic Policies & 
Procedures (AP&P) Faculty Co-chair and read the AP&P 
definitions for online courses. Dr. Wiewall asked DETC to 
consider the following: 
 

Approved Distance Education Course Categories 
Currently there are two categories of DE courses for 
AVC used by the AP&P Committee. These are the 
categories and their definitions (From the 2017‐2018 
AP&P Standards & Practices Handbook):   
1. Hybrid Course:  a course designed to utilize some 
classroom‐based instruction integrated with 
other modes of electronic instructional delivery: e.g. 
Internet, e‐mail, video, discussion boards, 
multi media, etc. Hybrid courses meet both on‐campus 
and online.   
2. Online Course:  a course designed to utilize methods 
of instruction entirely online. (No on‐ 
campus meetings required.)   
The following categories are recommended for 
adoption:   



 

Approved: May 22, 2018 Distance Education & Technology Committee Meeting 

1. Online Course:  a course designed for all instruction 
to take place online with no requirement for 
students to meet on campus at any time during the 
term.   
2. Hybrid Course:  a course designed for the all of 
instruction to take place online. Students will be 
required to meet on campus at least once for one of the 
following non‐instructional purposes: 
orientation, exam, quiz, or other non‐instructional 
activity.   
3. Blended Course:  a course designed for instruction to 
take place both in the classroom and 
online, where no less than 51% of instruction occurs 
online. Students will be required to meet 
on campus and online during the term. 
4. Remote Classroom Course: a course designed for 
instruction to take place in the classroom 
allowing students to remotely attend the course. 
Students will be required to meet at 
designated sites. 

 
Dr. Beyer reported he met with Dr. Suderman and has a 
better understanding of AP&P’s goal. AP&P is concerned 
with how much instruction takes place on campus in a 
hybrid course. They are trying to make a requirement to 
ensure that when an online class meets on campus there 
will be some instruction. 
 
Dr. Lee explained AP&P’s original design was to include 
an option for faculty that have courses that split instruction 
between online and in the classroom. If students are on 
campus the course is not online (instruction). Courses 50% 
or more online are reported as Distance Education courses. 

 
Mike Wilmes suggested DETC not support the new 
definitions as they do not meet the definitions of President 
Knudson.  
 
After rigorous discussion Dr. Beyer read a revised draft for 
the definitions. He will distribute the revisions to Dr. Lee, 
Dr. Wiewall, Dr. Suderman and Deb Sullivan Ford. 
Item tabled until May 22, 2018 meeting. 

VII. Action Items Dr. Ed Beyer A. Course Definitions (attachment) 
Item tabled. 

VIII. Adjournment   
NEXT MEETING: 5/22/18   

 



Antelope Valley College | Academic Policies and Procedures (AP&P) Committee 1 of 1 
 

ANTELOPE VALLEY COLLEGE 
Academic Affairs Office 

 
To: Academic Senate 
 
From: Dr. Darcy Wiewall, AP&P Cochair 
 
Date: April 27, 2018 
 
Subject: AP&P Committee Recommendations for Academic Senate Approval 
 
 
The following items were reviewed and approved by the Academic Policies and Procedures (AP&P) Committee: 

 
Administrative Items Approved by AP&P:  
1. Distance Education Definitions Revised 
 
New Corporate Community Education Courses Approved by AP&P:  
1. Certificate of Infectious Diseases and Infection Control 
2. Explore a Career in Medical Transcription 
3. EKG Technician Program 

 



Approved Distance Education Course Categories 

 

Currently there are two categories of DE courses for AVC used by the AP&P Committee. These are the 

categories and their definitions (From the 2017‐2018 AP&P Standards & Practices Handbook):  

1. Hybrid Course:  a course designed to utilize some classroom‐based instruction integrated with 

other modes of electronic instructional delivery: e.g. Internet, e‐mail, video, discussion boards, 

multi media, etc. Hybrid courses meet both on‐campus and online.  

2. Online Course:  a course designed to utilize methods of instruction entirely online. (No on‐

campus meetings required.)  

The following categories are recommended for adoption:  

1. Online Course:  a course designed for all instruction to take place online with no requirement for 

students to meet on campus at any time during the term.  

2. Hybrid Course:  a course designed for the all of instruction to take place online. Students will be 

required to meet on campus at least once for one of the following non‐instructional purposes: 

orientation, exam, quiz, or other non‐instructional activity.  

3. Blended Course:  a course designed for instruction to take place both in the classroom and 

online, where no less than 51% of instruction occurs online. Students will be required to meet 

on campus and online during the term. 

4. Remote Classroom Course: a course designed for instruction to take place in the classroom 

allowing students to remotely attend the course. Students will be required to meet at 

designated sites. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Revisions  

to the  

Distance Education Course  

Categories Definitions 

 

 

 

 

 

Ed Beyer, PhD 

Computer Applications Professor 

Antelope Valley College 

April 21, 2018 

  



2 
 

 

Introduction 

At Antelope Valley College, students have the option to take college courses through two basic 

delivery methods, either on campus in a traditional classroom, or through distance education 

using communication technologies. Students select courses using the college class schedule, 

which identifies classes by available sections, and if a section is offered online using 

communication technologies, it is given an OL designation. Recently, a HY designation was 

added to indicate that the course is delivered using a hybrid method in which 51 percent or more 

of the course instruction/communication occurs online throughout the semester, with a 

requirement for meeting on campus, as opposed to an OL designation, which indicates that the 

course is conducted completely online without any campus meetings. The typical, but not sole, 

use of the hybrid format is to provide students with an initial course orientation, to conduct in-

person learning assessments, or for other instructional purposes where students might benefit 

from a face-to-face meeting.  

Background 

The amount of online instruction that takes place in a course is important for purposes of 

reporting distance education data through the Chancellor’s Office Management Information 

System. According to Title 5 Section 55210, if instruction occurs through distance education “for 

at least 51 percent of the hours of instruction in the course or course section,” regardless of 

whether the course is considered fully online or hybrid, the district is required to report specific 

and related data on the course as a distance education course. This suggests that when course 

instruction is more than 49% on campus, even though the class may be considered distance 

education because it uses communication technologies, according to the Title 5 definition, which 

states that distance education occurs when students and teachers are separated by distance and 

that interaction occurs using communication technologies, the data is not required to be 

reported as distance education as outlined in Title 5 Section 55210. As such, it may be the case 

that a course that meets on campus and online in alternating classes, which would mean that 50 

percent of the instruction occurs online and 50 percent on campus, would not have to be 

reported as a distance education course. In such a case, the course would neither be an online 

course nor a hybrid course, yet it is still a distance education course.  



3 
 

How then should that distance education course be defined beyond being just a distance 

education course, which, by the label itself, does not clarify how data for the course should be 

reported? To clarify the delivery design of such a course, a third designation, blended, has been 

introduced, and used, in scheduling discussions. A proposed definition of a blended course was 

recommended by the Distance Education and Technology Committee (DETC) and subsequently 

submitted to the Academic Senate for Approval by the Academic Policies & Procedures (AP&P) 

committee. 

Problem 

In April 2016, four distance education category definitions were proposed, and approved, by the 

DETC and forwarded to AP&P. The recommendation to adopt the category definitions were then 

submitted as a recommendation to the Academic Senate by AP&P at the April 19, 2018 senate 

meeting. Through public comments at the meeting, objections were raised as to the use of the 

category definitions, and, after further discussion by senators during the agenda item motion, 

the proposed recommendation was rejected and sent back to AP&P for revision. 

The concerns raised through the objection were two-fold; the definitions as proposed possessed 

a lack of clarity between hybrid and blended courses, and the hybrid course definition was 

prescriptive in its language on when and why a hybrid class would meet on campus.  

For purposes of discussion, the Distance Education Course Categories definitions that were 

proposed are repeated here: 

Online Course: a course designed for all instruction to take place online with no 

requirement for students to meet on campus at any time during the term. 

Hybrid Course: a course designed for the majority of instruction to take place online. 

Students will be required to meet on campus for orientations, exams, quizzes or other 

non-instructional activities. 

Blended Course: a course designed for instruction to take place both in the classroom 

and online. Students will be required to meet on campus and online during the term. 

Remote Classroom Course: a course designed for instruction to take place in the 

classroom allowing students to remotely attend the course. 



4 
 

Addressing the first concern, and to illustrate the lack of clarity between hybrid and blended 

courses, let us examine a fictitious course that is scheduled to meet nine weeks online and 

required students to meet seven weeks on campus. Would this be considered a hybrid or a 

blended course? 

Initially, it would easily appear to fall into the category of hybrid, as it should if we are to 

presume that all nine weeks online are used for instruction; the nine weeks exceeds the 51% 

online threshold and campus meetings are required. However, it also meets the criteria as a 

blended course since instruction presumably occurs both online and on campus and students 

are required to meet online and on campus during the term. So, in this case, there is no 

difference between the designation of hybrid course or blended course. So, which is it? 

While the reason for needing the blended designation has not been clearly articulated campus-

wide, for purposes of suggesting a solution to the definition ambiguities, let us presume that the 

need for a blended designation is to indicate that a course is a distance education course, but 

one that is designed to meet more than 49% on campus during the term. Such a presumption 

not only helps to clarify the reporting requirement of the course, it also let’s students know that 

the campus meeting requirement is significant simply by the designation of BL in the class 

schedule. An example would be two courses scheduled at the same time and in the same 

classroom. By alternating classes between on campus and online, both classes will utilize the 

same instructional space at the same time. However, the amount of instruction online does not 

meet the 51 percent online threshold and thus the course would not be a hybrid or online course, 

rather it would be a blended course with different reporting requirements. In the case of the 

fictitious course previously discussed, the hybrid designation would be clearly identified as 

instruction on campus did not exceed 49% and the course had requirements to meet on campus. 

As to the prescriptive nature of the hybrid definition, as written, students will be required to 

meet on campus for orientations, exams and quizzes. The definition language suggests that if a 

course has weekly quizzes or exams, they would be required to conduct the assessments on 

campus. Additionally, the blended course definition, by specifying that instruction takes place 

both in the classroom and online, suggests that instruction does not occur in a classroom 

meeting of a hybrid course. Both notions are, of course, ridiculous. However, the wording of the 

definitions can be interpreted to mean otherwise.  



5 
 

Along with the ambiguity discussed so far, the general meeting requirements of a distance 

education course may not always be easily discernable to a student simply from the course 

listing in the college schedule. It has been the case that students have enrolled in an OL 

designated course only to discover that there are 8 of 16 campus meetings required. This has 

been partially resolved through the addition of the HY designation for hybrid courses beginning 

with the Fall 18 semester. 

Solution 

To provide clarity for administrative reporting and student expectations, the following 

definitions are being proposed for discussion and consideration for adoption. 

Online Course: a course designed for all instruction to take place online with no 

requirement for students to meet on campus at any time during the term. 

Hybrid Course: a course designed for instruction to take place at least 51 percent 

online and includes a requirement for students to meet on campus one or more times 

during the term. 

Blended Course: a course designed for instruction to take place more than 49% on 

campus and includes a requirement for students to participate online one or more times 

during the term.   

Remote Classroom Course: a course designed for instruction to take place in the 

classroom allowing students to remotely attend the course. 

Through the adoption of these proposed definitions, students will have a clear understanding of 

any requirement to meet on campus, and administration will have clear guidance on how the 

data for a course should be reported to the chancellor’s office. 

Additionally, by correctly designating applicable courses as blended, and thus not as an online 

course, it will help deans identify the load of faculty related to the restriction of not teaching 

more than 50 percent of load online. 

Conclusion 

Based on the discussion conducted at the Academic Senate meeting regarding the proposed 

definitions, it appears that the intent of the proposed definitions was for the good of the college, 



6 
 

but the translation into written form fell short. As such, it is essential to establish and adopt 

clear definitions that will enable the college to gather and report accurate data to the 

chancellor’s office, and, at the same time, assist students in gaining an initial understanding of 

any meeting requirements that may be required for a particular distance education course. 


	5-8-18 DETC Agenda
	5-8-18 DETC Minutes
	5-8-18 DETC - APP DE Definitions
	5-8-18 DETC White Paper - Distance Education Course Categories EBeyer

